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CAPITAL BANCORP
1820 WEST END AVENUE
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37283

Dear Shareholders:

Outstanding progress sums up 2002 for CaBital Banco% Inc. and its wholl¥—
owned subsidiary Ca{ntal Bank & Trust Company. We are very lproud o

5%03rt to you our'results for 2002, while we look forward to the challenges of

Our 001’11{?&111)”5 growth in assets, deposits and net earnings durin% 2002 was
strong. et income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $1,627,000, or
$1.04 basic earnings per common share, up 64.5% from $989,000, or $0.63
basic earnings per common share, for the same period in 2001. Total assets
mcreased $57,993,000, or 32%, from $181,412,000 at December 31, 2001, to
$239.405,000°at December 31, 2002. During 2002, loans, net of allowance for
possible loan losses and unearned interest and fees, increased by $34,433,000
or about 24.8%, ending the year at $173,385,000. Total deposits increase

$39,802,000, or 26.5%, for the same period, ending the year at $189,895,000.

The record numbers for 2002 reflect the growth of our investment in our three
recent retail locations in Goodlettsville, Hendersonville and Hermitage/Old
Hickory. t December 31, 2002, these three markets represented
approximately $63,600,000, or 36.3%, of our total loans, and approxxmate;lg
&4,000,000, or 23.2%, of our total deposits. We are extremely pleased wit
the way these locations have contributed to our expansion and fully expect
these 1ocations to continue producing solid results.

Looking forward, we have set lof] %oais for qur bank to continue solid growth
in loans, deposits and earnings. ile we realize that the economic conditions
are expected to remain flat, with the housing, retail and manufacturing sectors
showing softness, we fully expect to achieéve our 2003 goals_wﬂh e hard
work of our outsfanding téam. We will, as we always Raye in the past, be
prudent in our lending practices. We look to expand our bank through organic
growth, and we are always attentive to new oOpportunities to attract strong
imdividuals that would complement our existing staff. Our approach is
threefold. We_continue to gain momentum by: (1) providing for our
customers by offering personal service and innovative products to meet their
needs; (2) providing value to our shareholders’ investments by managing the
company in a sound and profitable manner through managed ‘growth, and b
mamtamm% quality assets; and (3) providing a challenging work environmerit
for our employees, ensuring that quality personnel are obtained, developed and
maintained by providing quality empldyee benefits, training opportunities, fair
wages and réwards for outstaniding sefvice.

Thank you for your continued support! As a shareholder, you can contribute
directly to the”Bank’s Fr_owth and profitability. Be suré to bring us your
11

business and refer your friends. Remember, as we grow, your investment has
an opportunity to grow.

};L. Rick Hart 7M

Chairman, President & CEQ

Very truly yours,




CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS:
Total assets end of year
Loans, net

Securities

Deposits

Stockholders' equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF EARNINGS:

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Provision for possible loan losses

Net interest income after provision for possible
loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes

Net earnings

Comprehensive earnings

Cash dividends declared

PER SHARE DATA:

Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

Cash dividends
Book value

RATIOS:
Return on average stockholders' equity
Return on average assets

Capital to assets

Dividends declared per share as percentage of
basic earnings per share

In Thousands, Except Per Share Information

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Formerly Capital Bank & Trust Company)

As Of December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$239,405 181,412 166,942 136,313 113,687
$173,385 138,952 114,703 102,912 73,691
$ 45,144 23,347 25,990 24,926 18,146
$189,895 150,093 144,093 100,978 90,705
$ 18,632 16,521 15,282 19,062 14,216

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

$ 13,721 13,254 13,338 10,084 7,945
5,170 6,466 6,997 4,520 3,687
8,551 6,788 6,341 5,564 4,258
1,090 570 792 450 280
7,461 6,218 5,549 5,114 3,978
1,978 1,308 812 762 659
6,853 5,945 5,095 4,201 3,101
2,586 1,581 1,266 1,675 1,536

959 592 179 637 598

$ 1,627 989 1,087 1,038 938

$ 2,111 1,189 1,520 384 914

$ - - - . -

$ 104 0.63 0.68 0.64 0.69

$ 101 0.62 0.65 0.59 0.56

$ - . - . -

$ 1190 10.55 9.79 10.53 10.42

930 % 6.19 % 7.26 % 6.06 % 6.81
078 % 057 % 072 % 086 % 1.00
778 % 9.11 % 9.15 % 1398 % 12.50

%

%

%

%

%
%




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of this discussion is to provide insight into the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company and its subsidiary. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Management's discussion of the Company, and management's analysis of the Company’s operations and
prospects, and other matters, may include forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other provisions of federal and state securities laws. Although the Company
believes that the assumptions underlying such forward-looking statements contained in this Report are reasonable,
any of the assumptions could be inaccurate and, accordingly, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements included herein will prove to be accurate. The use of such words as expect, anticipate, forecast, and
comparable terms should be understood by the reader to indicate that the statement is "forward-looking" and thus
subject to change in a manner that can be unpredictable. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from the
results anticipated, but not guaranteed, in this Report, include (without limitation) economic and social conditions,
competition for loans, mortgages, and other financial services and products, changes in interest rates, unforeseen
changes in liquidity, results of operations and financial condition affecting the Company’s customers, as well as
other risks that cannot be accurately quantified or completely identified. Many factors affecting the Company’s
financial condition and profitability, including changes in economic conditions, the volatility of interest rates,
political events and competition from other providers of financial services simply cannot be predicted. Because
these factors are unpredictable and beyond the Company’s control, earnings may fluctuate from period to period.
The purpose of this type of information is to provide readers with information relevant to understanding and
assessing the financial condition and results of operations of the Company, and not to predict the future or to
guarantee results. The Company is unable to predict the types of circumstances, conditions, and factors that can
cause anticipated results to change. The Company undertakes no obligation to publish revised forward-looking
statements to reflect the occurrence of changes or unanticipated events, circumstances, or results,

General

Effective July 1, 2001, Capital Bancorp, Inc. (“Company”) acquired 100% of the common stock of Capital
Bank & Trust Company (“Bank™), and accordingly, became a one bank holding company. Management believes
that the holding company structure will permit greater flexibility in the expansion of the Company’s present
business and will allow the Company to be more responsive 10 its customers broadening and changing financial
needs. The transaction has been treated as a reorganization for accounting purposes; and accordingly, the comments
included in this analysis are made considering the share exchange was effective retroactive for all periods discussed.
Capital Bank & Trust Company is a community bank headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee serving Davidson,
Sumner and Wilson Counties, Tennessee and surrounding counties as its primary market area. During the year
ended December 31, 2000 the Bank opened two new branches in Sumner County, Tennessee at a land and building
cost of $2,806,000. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company opened a new branch in Western
Wilson County at a land and building cost of $1,393,000. The Company serves as a financial intermediary whereby
its profitability is determined to a large degree by the interest spread it achieves and the successful measurement of
risks. The Company’s management believes that its market area offers an environment for continued growth and the
Company’s target market is local consumers, professionals and small businesses. The Company offers a wide range
of banking services, including checking, savings, and money market deposit accounts, certificates of deposits, and
loans for consumer, commercial and real estate purposes. Deposit instruments in the form of demand deposits,
money market savings and certificates of deposits are offered to customers to establish the Company’s core deposit
base.

Management believes there is an opportunity to coatinue to increase the loan portfolio. The Company has
targeted commercial business lending, commercial and residential real estate lending, and consumer lending as areas
of focus. It is the Company’s intention to limit the size of its loan portfolio to approximately 80% of deposit
balances; however, the quality of lending opportunities as well as the desired loan to deposit ratio wiil determine the
size of the loan portfolio. At December 31, 2002 and 2001 the ratio was 92.6% and 94.0%, respectively. As a
practice, the Company generates substantially all of its own loans but occasionally buys participations from other
institutions. The Company attempts, to the extent practical, to maintain a loan portfolio which is capable of
adjustment to swings in interest rates. The Company’s policy is to have a diverse loan portfolio not dependent on
any particular market or industrial segment.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Capital Resources, Capital and Dividends

The Company’s principal regulators have established required minimum capital levels for the Company
and its subsidiary. Under these regulations, banks must maintain certain capital levels as a percentage of average
total assets (leverage capital ratio) and as a percentage of total risk-based assets (risk-based capital ratio). Under the
risk-based requirements, various categories of assets and commitments are assigned a percentage related to credit
risk ranging from 0% for assets backed by the full faith and credit of the United States to 100% for loans other than
residential real estate loans and certain off-balance sheet commitments. Total capital is characterized as either Tier
1 capital - common stockholders' equity, noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and a limited amount of
cumulative perpetual preferred - or total risk-based capital which includes the allowance for foan losses up to 1.25%
of risk weighted assets, perpetual preferred stock, subordinated debt and various other hybrid capital instruments,
subject to various limits. Goodwill is not includable in Tier 1 or total risk-based capital. Net unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded for the regulatory capital ratios. The Company and its subsidiary
must maintain a Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets of at least 4.0%, a total risk-based capital to risk-based assets ratio
of at feast 8§.0% and a leverage capital ratio defined as Tier | capital to adjusted total average assets for the most
recent quarter of at least 4%. The same ratios are also required in order for a bank to be considered "adequately
capitalized” under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Tennessee Department of Financial
Institutions "prompt corrective action” regulations, which impose certain operating restrictions on institutions which
are not adequately capitalized. The Company and the Bank have a Tier 1 risk based ratio of 10.0%, a total risk-
based capital ratio of 11.2% and a leverage capital ratio of 7.7%, and were therefore within the "well capitalized"
category under the regulations. The comparable ratios at December 31, 2001 were 11.5%, 12.8% and 9.2%,
respectively. The decline in the ratios from 2001 to 2002 relates to the continued growth of the Company.

During 2000, the Company acquired 250,000 shares of common stock at a price of $18.00 per share from
its then largest shareholder. In addition, the shareholder exercised all of his options for 112,500 shares at a total
exercise price of $1,225,000. The Company then acquired these shares at $18.00 per share. The net effect of these
transactions was to reduce the total capital of the Company by $5,300,000. The Company’s capital was increased
during 2000 resulting from net earnings of $1,087,000 and a decrease in the net unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes of $433,000. All this activity resulted in a decline in stockholders’ equity of $3,780,000 from
$19,062,000 at December 31, 1999 to $15,282,000 at December 31, 2000. The decrease in stockholders’ equity and
an increase in the Bank’s assets resulted in the lower capital ratios at December 31, 2000. Management believes that
the lower capital and resulting higher leveraged capital position will ultimately result in a higher return on equity for
the stockholders while at the same time maintaining sound capital ratios that meet the regulatory requirements. The
return on equity {net income divided by average equity) increased from 6.2% to 9.3% from 2001 to 2002.

Financial Condition

During 2002, total assets increased $57,993,000 or 32.0% from $181,412,000 at December 31, 2001 to
$239,405,000 at December 31, 2002. Loans, net of allowance for possible loan losses, increased from $138,952,000
to $173,385,000 or 24.8% during fiscal year 2002. The net increase in loans for 2002 was due primarily to a 10.2%
increase in commercial, financial and agricultural loans, a 8.6% increase in installment loans, a 30.4% increase in
real estate -mortgage loans and a 130.0% increase in real estate - construction loans.

Securities increased 93.4% from $23,347,000 at December 31, 2001 to $45,144 000 at December 31, 2002.
The carrying value of securities of U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government obligations increased $4,414,000,
obligations of state and political subdivisions increased $1,059,000, corporate and other securities increased
$701,000 and there was an increase in mortgage backed securities of $15,623,000. At December 31, 2002 the
market value of the Company’s securities portfolio was greater than its amortized cost by $814,000 (1.8%). At
December 31, 2001 the market value of the Company’s securities portfolio was greater than its amortized cost by
$29,000 (.1%). The weighted average yield (stated on a tax-equivalent basis, assuming a Federal income tax rate of
34%) of the securities at December 31, 2002 was 4.39%.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Financiel Condition, Continued

The Company applies the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 (SFAS No.
115), "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”. Under the provisions of the Statement,
securities are to be classified in three categories and accounted for as follows:

e  Debt securities that the enterprise has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities and reported at amortized cost.

e Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near
term are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included
in earnings; and

e Debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity securities or trading securities are
classified as available-for-sale securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from earnings and reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

All the Company’s securities are classified as available-for-sale.
2002 2001
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Market Amortized Market
Cost Value Cost Value
{In Thousands) (In Thousands)
U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
government agencies and
corporations $ 14,218 14,466 10,078 10,052
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 2,125 2,180 1,104 1,121
Mortgage-backed securities 26,190 26,701 11,040 11,078
Corporate and other securities 1,797 1,797 1,096 1,096
$ 44330 45,144 23318 23,347

During the year ended December 31, 2000 the net increase in capital included $433,000 which represents
the unrealized appreciation in securities available-for-sale of $697,000 net of applicable taxes of $264,000. During
the year ended December 31, 2001 the net increase in capital included $200,000 which represents the unrealized
appreciation in securities available-for-sale of $322,000 net of applicable taxes of $122,000. During the year ended
December 31, 2002, the net increase in capital included $484,000 which represents the unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale of $784,000 net of applicable taxes of $300,000.

The increase in assets in 2002 was funded primarily by increases in deposits. Total deposits increased from
$150,093,000 at December 31, 2001 to $189,895,000 at December 31, 2002 representing an increase of 26.5%.
Demand deposit accounts increased 24.2% from $14,962,000 at December 31, 2001 to $18,584,000 at December 31,
2002. Additionally, an increase in certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts $100,000 or greater
accounts of $28,115,000 or 88.1% contributed to the increases in deposits for 2002. Money market demand deposits
decreased by $4,071,000 or 6.5% as a result of management’s change in pricing strategy. Securities sold under
repurchase agreements increased $368,000 during 2002 and advances from Federal Home Loan Bank increased
$14,787,000 in 2002.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2002 was $2,535,000 as compared to
$2,122,000 at December 31, 2001. Non-performing loans amounted to $1,590,000 at December 31, 2002 compared
to $1,770,000 at December 31, 2001. Non-performing loans are loans which have been placed on non-accrual
status, loans 90 days past due plus renegotiated loans. Net charge-off's totaled $677,000 for 2002, $334,000 for
2001 and $236,000 for 2000. The provision for possible loan losses was $1,090,000 in 2002, $570,000 in 2001 and
$792,000 in 2000. The net charge-off's in 2002, 2001 and 2000 are considered by management to be reasonable.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF QPERATIONS

Financial Condition, Continued

The allowance for possible loan losses, amounting to $2,535,000 at December 31, 2002, represents 1.4% of
total loans outstanding. At December 31, 2001, the allowance for possible loan losses represented 1.5% of total
loans outstanding. Management has in place a system to identify and monitor problem loans. A formal review is
prepared monthly by the Loan Review Officer to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses. The review includes analysis of historical performance, the level of non-performing and
adversely rated loans, specific analysis of certain problem loans, loan activity since the previous assessment, reports
prepared by the Loan Review Officer, consideration of current economic conditions, and other pertinent
information. The level of the allowance to net loans outstanding will vary depending on the overall results of this
monthly assessment. The review is presented to and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors.
Management believes the allowance for possible loan losses at December 31, 2002 to be adequate.

Liguidity

Liquidity represents the ability to efficiently and economically accommodate decreases in deposits and
other liabilities, as well as fund increases in assets. A Company has liquidity potential when it has the ability to
obtain sufficient funds in a timely manner at a reasonable cost. The availability of funds through deposits, the
purchase and sales of securities in the investment portfolio, the use of funds for consumer and commerciat loans and
the access to debt markets affect the liquidity of the Company. The Company’s loan to deposit ratio was
approximately 92.6% and 94.0% at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively.

The Company’s investment portfolio, as represented above, consists of earning assets that provide interest
income.

Funds management decisions must reflect management's intent to maintain profitability in both the
immediate and long-term eamings. The Company’s rate sensitivity position has an important impact on earnings.
Senior management of the Company meets periodically to analyze the rate sensitivity position of the Company.
These meetings focus on the spread between the Company’s cost of funds and interest yields generated primarily
through loans and investments. )

Capital Bancorp, Inc. presently maintains a liability sensitive position over the 2003 year or a negative gap.
Liability sensitivity means that more of the Company’s liabilities are capable of repricing over certain time frames
than assets. The interest rates associated with these liabilities may not actually change over this period but are
capable of changing. For example, the six month gap is a picture of the possible repricing over a six month period.
The following table shows the rate sensitivity gaps for different time periods as of December 31, 2002:

Interest-rate sensitivity One Year
gaps: 1-99 91-186 181-365 and
(In Thousands) Days Days Days Longer Total
Interest-earning assets $ 95,660 5,818 8,588 117,018 227,084
Interest-bearing liabilities 99,272 11,787 14,541 75,340 200,940
Interest sensitivity gap $ (3,612) __(5,969) (5,953) 41,678 26,144
Cumulative gap $_(3612) __(9,581) (15,534) 26,144

Interest rate sensitivity gap :
as a % of total assets ___(1.51)% (2.49% (2.49)% 17.41%

Cumulative gap as a % of .
total assets (15" {4.00)% (6.49)% 10.92%




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Liguidity, Continsued

Historically, there has been no significant reduction in immediately withdrawable accounts such as
negotiable order of withdrawal, money market demand, demand deposit and regular savings accounts. Management
does not anticipate that there will be significant withdrawals from these accounts in the future.

It is anticipated that with present maturities, the anticipated growth in deposit base, and the efforts of
management in its asset/liability management program, liquidity will not pose a problem in the foreseeable future.
At the present time there are no known trends or any known commitments, demands, events or uncertainties that
will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the Company’s liquidity changing in any material way.

Results of Operations

Net earnings for 2002 totaled $1,627,000 which was an increase of $638,000 or 64.5% from $989,000 for
2001. Net eamnings for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased $98,000 or 9.0% from $1,087,000 for fiscal
year 2000. Basic earnings per common share was $1.04 in 2002, $.63 in 2001 and $.68 in 2000. Diluted earnings
per common share were $1.01, $.62 and $.65 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Average earning assets
increased $37,122,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2001.
Average earning assets increased $18,813,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2000. Additionally, the net interest spread increased from 4.01% in 2001 to 4.19% in 2002. The net
interest spread was 4.15% in 2000. Net interest spread is defined as the effective yield on earning assets less the
effective cost of deposits and borrowed funds, as calculated on a fully taxable equivalent basis. The decrease in the
net interest spread from 2000 to 2001 is attributable to funding of interest bearing assets by increases in securities
sold under repurchase agreements and advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. These items typically have
higher interest rates than are paid on customer deposits. The interest spread increased from 2001 to 2002 because
interest bearing deposits repriced more rapidly than interest bearing loans in a declining rate environment.

Net interest income before provision for possible loan losses for 2002 totaled $8,551,000 as compared to
$6,788,000 for 2001 and $6,341,000 for 2000. The provision for possible loan losses was $1,090,000 in 2002,
$570,000 in 2001 and $792,000 in 2000. Net charge-off's in 2002 were $677,000 as compared to $334,000 in 2001
and $236,000 in 2000.

Non-interest income increased 51.2% to $1,978,000 in 2002 from $1,308,000 in 2001. The increase is
primarily the result of increases in service charges on deposit accounts of $439,000, gain on sale of loans of
$191,000 and other fees and commissions of $40,000. Non-interest income of $1,308,000 in 2001 was an increase
of approximately 61.1% from $812,000 in 2000. The increase in 2001 resulted primarily from increases in service
charges on deposits of $230,000, gain on sale of loans of $210,000 and other fees and commissions of $55,000. The
increase in service charges is attributable to implementation of a bounce protection program for the Company’s
customers.

Non-interest expense increased 15.3% to $6,853,000 in 2002 from $5,945,000 in 2001. Non-interest
expense was $5,095,000 in 2000. Non-interest expense which includes, among other things, salaries and employee
benefits, occupancy expenses, furniture and equipment expenses, data processing, Federal deposit insurance and
state banking fees, supplies and general operating costs increased commensurate with the continued growth of the
Company. The increase in 2002 was primarily attributable to an increase in salaries and employment benefits of
$516,000 (15.4%), an increase in occupancy expenses of $27,000 (3.9%), an increase in furniture and equipment
expenses of $29,000 (7.8%) and increases in other operating expenses of $252,000 or 21.5%. The non-interest
expense increased approximately 16.7% from 2000 to 2001 and was due primarily to increases in salaries and
employees benefits, occupancy expenses, furniture and equipment expenses, and other operating expenses.

Income tax expense increased to $959,000 in 2002 from $592,000 in 2001. The income tax expense for
2000 was $179,000. The tax expense for 2000 was reduced significantly as a result of a compensation deduction of
$800,000 related to stock options exercised pursuant to a nonqualified stock option plan. The combined Federal and
state income tax effect of this item was $304,000. The balance of the increase in tax expenses results primarily from
an increase in pretax earnings.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations, Continued

Management is not aware of any current recommendations by the regulatory authorities which, if
implemented, would have a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, capital resources or operations.

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as the Company
are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, interest rates have a more significant effect on the Company’s
performance since they impact both interest revenues and interest costs.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 133 is effective for all fiscal quarters of all
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999. SFAS 133 requires all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance
sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or
other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative is designated as part of a hedge transactions and,
if it is, the type of hedge transaction. In June of 1999 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 137, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB
Statement No. 133 (SFAS 137). SFAS 137 delays the effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2000. The adoption of SFAS 133 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
results of operations or its financial position.

In June 2000, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.”
SFAS No. 138 provides several technical amendments to SFAS No. 133. Since Capital Bancorp, Inc. does not hold
any derivative instruments or engagement in hedging activities, SFAS No. 138 has not had a significant impact on
the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
. Standard No. 141, Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No.
141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be
amortized, but instead be tested for impairment annually. SFAS No. 142 is effective on January 1, 2002. These
statements are not expected to have any impact on the Company’s financial position or resuits of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 applies to legal obligations
associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result form the acquisition, construction, development and/or
the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS No. 143 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. Since Capital Bancorp, Inc. does not have
any legal obligations as described above, this statement is not expected to have any impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, SFAS 144. This statement
supersedes SFAS No. 121 Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed of, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of
Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, for the disposal of a segment of a business (as previously defined
in that Opinion). SFAS No. 144 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years. This statement is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial position or resuits of operations.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Impact of New Accounting Standards, Continued

In October 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 147, Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions. SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 72 and FASB
Interpretation No. 9 to eliminate all acquisitions of financial institutions other than transactions between mutual
enterprises from their scope. Accordingly, the excess of the purchase price paid to acquire a financial institution
over the fair value of the identifiable tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired now must be recorded
as goodwill following SFAS No. 141 and assessed for impairment following SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. Capital Bancorp, Inc. will adopt SFAS 147 immediately, but it is not expected to have any
current impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Abosi Market Risk

The Company’s primary component of market risk is interest rate volatility. Fluctuations in interest rates
will ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded on a large portion of the Company’s assets and
liabilities, and the market value of all interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, other than those which
possess a short term to maturity. Based upon the nature of the Company’s current operations, the Company is not
presently subject to foreign currency exchange or commodity price risk.

Interest rate risk- (sensitivity) management focuses on the earnings risk associated with changing interest
rates. Management seeks to maintain profitability in both immediate and long term earnings through funds
management/interest rate risk management. The Company’s rate sensitivity position has an important impact on
earnings. Senior management of the Company meets periodically to analyze the rate sensitivity position. Such
meetings are intended to focus on the spread between the cost of funds and interest yields generated primarily
through loans and investments. '

The following table provides information about the Company’s financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates as of December 31, 2002:

Home Loan Bank
Average interest rate - - -

Held for Purposes Expected Maturity Date -
Other Than Trading Year Ending December 31, Fair
(In Thousands) 2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 2008-2012 Thereafter Total Value
Earning assets:

Loans, net of uneamed
interest $ 61,020 49,748 39,997 18,912 6,243 175,920 179,074
Average interest rate 6.36% 7.022% 6.93% 5.36% 721% 6.61%

Securities 2,054 5,556 2,889 11,949 22,696 45,144 45,144
Average interest rate 4.33% 3.45% 3.80% 3.16% 4.90% 4.39%

Loans held for sale 5,769 - - - - 5,769 5,769
Average interest rate 5.86% - - - - 5.86%

Interest-bearing deposits 251 - - - - 251 251
in financial institutions
Average interest rate 5.56% - - - - 5.56%

Interest-bearing
liabilities:

Interest-bearing time
deposits 43,422 48,768 7,095 - - 99,285 101,264
Average interest rate 2.59% 3.93% 4.62% - - 3.40%

Negotiable order of 11,955 - - - - 11,955 11,955
withdrawal accounts
Average interest rate 0.29% - - - - 0.29%

Money market demand }
accounts 58,179 - - - - 58,179 58,179
Average interest rate 1.30% - - - - 1.30% o

Savings deposits 1,892 - - - - 1,892 . 1,892
Average interest rate 0.80% - - - - 0.80% )

Federal funds purchased 620 - - - - 620 - 620
Average interest rate 1.65% - - - - 1.65% .

Securities sold under 3,222 - - - - 3,222 3,222
repurchase agreements
Average interest rate 1.61% - - - - 1.61%

Advances from Federal - - - 25,787 - 25,787 24,758
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MAGGART & ASSCCIATES, B.C.
Certified Public Accountants
150 FOURTH AVENUE, NORTH
SUITE 2150
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37219-2417
Telephone (615) 252-6100
Facsimile (615) 252-6105

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Capital Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Capital Bancorp, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive earnings, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Capital Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/’747%; M/ <.

February 7, 2003
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Consglidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2002 and 2001

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Loans, net of allowance for possible loan losses of $2,535,000
and $2,122,000, respectively $ 173,385 § 138,952
Securities available-for-sale, at market (amortized
cost $44,330,000 and $23,318,000, respectively) 45,144 23,347
Loans held for sale 5,769 3,514
Interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions 251 251
Federal funds sold - 2,450
Total earning assets 224,549 168,514
Cash and due from banks 5,160 4,040
Premises and equipment, net 5,060 5,428
Accrued interest receivable , 1,107 868
Deferred income taxes 546 724
Other real estate 505 244
Other assets 2,478 1,594
Total assets $§ 239405 § 181412
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOILDERS' EQUITY
Deposits $§ 189,895 § 150,093
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 3,222 2,854
Accrued income taxes 77 33
Accrued interest and other liabilities 1,172 911
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 25,787 11,000
Federal funds purchased 620 -
Total liabilities 220,773 164,891
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 20,000,000 shares,
no shares issued - -
Common stock, par value $4 per share, authorized 20,000,000
shares, 1,565,271 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 6,261 6,261
Additicnal paid-in capitai 5,909 5,909
Retained earnings 5,960 4,333
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of
taxes of $311,000 and $11,000, respectively 502 18
Total stockholders' equity 18,632 16,521
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 239405 § 181412

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest and dividends on securities:
Taxable securities
Exempt from Federal income taxes
Interest on loans held for sale
Interest on Federal funds sold
Interest on interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions
Total interest income

Interest expense:
Interest on savings accounts
Interest on negotiable order of withdrawal accounts
Interest on money market accounts
Interest on certificates of deposits over $100,000
Interest on certificates of deposits - other
Interest on securities sold under repurchase agreements
Interest on Federal funds purchased
Interest on advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

Total interest expense

Net interest income before provision for possible loan losses
Provision for possible loan losses
Net interest income after provision for possible loan losses

Non-interest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other fees and commissions
Gain on sales of loans
Gain on disposal of premises and equipment
Gain on sale of securities
Total non-interest income

Non-interest expense:
Employee salaries and benefits
Occupancy expenses
Furniture and equipment expenses
Legal fees
Data processing expenses
Loss on sale of other real estate
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment
Other operating expenses
Total non-interest expense

Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes

Net earnings
Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000

$ 12,050 % 11,488 11,335
1,370 1,120 1,589
71 51 51
147 144 83
64 408 261
19 43 19
13.721 13,254 13,338
12 11 11
51 145 139
1,053 2,379 3,094
1,828 1,681 1,254
1,274 1,716 1,780
47 81 82
10 - 75
895 453 562
5.170 6.466 6.997
8,551 6,788 6,341
1,090 570 792
7,461 6,218 5,549
1,029 590 360
166 126 71
782 591 381

- 1 -

| - .
1,978 1,308 812
3,858 3,342 2,872
728 701 544
399 370 316
215 97 67
209 197 156
19 67 46

2 - -
1.423 1,171 1,094
6.853 5.945 5,095
2,586 1,581 1,266
959 592 179
$ 1,627 % 989 _1,087
$ 104 § 63 68
$ 101 $_ 62 65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings

Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Net earnings $ 1,627 3 989 1,087
Other comprehensive earnings, net of tax:
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities arising
during period, net of tax expense of $300,000, $122,000
and $264,000, respectively 485 200 433
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains included
in net earnings, net of taxes (1) - -
Other comprehensive earnings . 484 200 433
Comprehensive earnings $ 2,111 3 1,189 1,520

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

{In Thousands)

Net
Unrealized
Gain (Loss)
On Available-
Preferred Common Retained For-Sale
Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Securities Total

Balance December 31, 1999 $ - $ 7,241 $ 10,179 § 2257 8§ 615) & 19,062
Issuance of 112,500 shares of

common stock related to

exercise of stock options - - 1,225 - - 1,225
Redemption of 112,500 stock

options - - (2,025) - - (2,025)
Redemption of 250,000 shares of

common stock - (1,000) (3,500) - - (4,500)
Net change in unrealized gain on

available-for-sale securities, net )

of taxes of $264,000 - - - - 433 433
Net earnings for the year - - - 1,087 - 1,087
Balance December 31, 2000 - 6,241 5,879 3,344 (182) 15,282
Issuance of 5,000 shares of common

stock related to exercise of stock

options - 20 30 - - 50
Net change in unrealized gain on

available-for-sale securities, net

of taxes of $122,000 - - - - 200 200
Net earnings for the year - - - 989 - 989
Balance December 31, 2001 - 6,261 5,909 4,333 18 16,521
Net change in unrealized gain on

available-for-sale securities, net

of taxes of $300,000 - - - - 484 484
Net eamnings for the year - - - 1,627 - 1,627
Balance December 31, 2002 b - $ 6,261 $ 5,909 § 5960 §$ 502 S 18,632

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Interest received $ 13,636 $ 13,401 12,913
Fees received 1,195 716 431
Interest paid (5,074) (6,518) (7,003)
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (6,784) (5,998) (4,966)
Proceeds from loan sales 52,411 41,645 21,614
Originations of loans held for sale (53,884) (43,803) (21,337)
Income taxes paid (1.198) (439) (585)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 302 (996) 1,067
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (35,925) (19,948) (1,385)
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities 12,760 23,023 1,275
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 2,001 - -
Loans made to customers, net of repayments (36,677) (25,459) (13,201)
Purchase of premises and equipment 67) (1,275) (3,277)
Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment - 4 -
Decrease (increase) in interest-bearing deposits in financial
institutions (175) 245 (63)
Expenditures on other real estate (1) (12) (30)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate 875 834 511
Net cash used in investing activities (57.209) (22.588) (16,170)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in non-interest bearing, savings and NOW
deposit accounts 116 823 43,370
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits 39,686 5,177 (255)
Redemption of common stock and stock options - - (6,525)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 50 1,225
Increase (decrease) in securities sold under repurchase
agreements 368 1,309 (638)
Net increase (decrease) in advances from Federal Home
Loan Bank 14,787 6,000 (8,275)
Net increase in Federal funds purchased 620 - -
Net cash provided by financing activities 55,577 13,359 28,902
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,330) (10,225) 13,799
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.490 16,715 2916
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,160 $ 6,490 16,715

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Three Years Ended December 31, 2002

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Reconciliation of net earnings to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Net earnings $ 1,627 $ 989 1,087
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 433 406 319
Amortization and accretion 210 47) (194)
Provision for possible loan losses 1,090 570 792
FHLB dividend reinvestment (54) (58) (58)
Provision for deferred income taxes (123) (79) (207)
Loss (gain) on disposal of premises and equipment 2 (1) -
Gain on sale of security 1)) - -
Loss on sale of other real estate 19 67 46
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable (239) 256 (168)
Increase in loans held for sale (2,255) (2,749) (104)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 96 (52) 6)
Increase in other assets (712) (271) (653)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 165 59 255
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes 44 32 (42)
Total adjustments (1,325) (1,985) (20)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3 302 b (996) 1,067
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Activities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of
tax expense of $300,000, $122,000 and $264,000,
respectively $ 484 $ __200 433
Non-cash transfers from loans to other real estate $ 1,154 b 640 618

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Capital Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries are in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and conform to general
practices within the banking industry. The following is a brief summary of the more significant
policies.

(@) Principles of Conselidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Capital Bank & Trust Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, CBTC
Corporation and Capital Housing Improvement Projects, Inc. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. On April 24, 2001, the
stockholders of Capital Bank & Trust Company voted to exchange their stock for stock in
Capital Bancorp, Inc. Effective July 1, 2001, Capital Bancorp, Inc. became a bank holding
company within the meaning of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. The
transaction has been treated as a reorganization for accounting purposes. The transaction has
no effect on the previously reported data included in the 2001 and 2000 financial statements
of Capital Bank & Trust Company.

)] Nature of Operations

Capital Bank & Trust Company is a state chartered bank which began operations on May 25,
1994. Capital Bank & Trust Company provides full banking services. As a state bank, the
Bank is subject to regulations of the Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The area served by Capital Bank & Trust Company
is Davidson and surrounding counties of Middle Tennessee. Services are provided at the
main office in Nashville, Tennessee and five branches.

(©) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to determination of the
allowance for possible loan losses and the valuation of debt and equity securities and the
related deferred taxes.

(@) Loans

Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding. Uneamned discount, deferred loan fees
net of loan acquisition costs, and the aliowance for possible loan losses are shown as
reductions of loans. Loan origination and commitment fees and certain loan-related costs are
being deferred and the net amount amortized as an adjustment of the related loan’s yield over
the contractual life of the loan. Unearned discount represents the unamortized amount of
finance charges, principally related to certain installment loans. Interest income on most
loans is accrued based on the principal amount outstanding,
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

)] Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(@

Loans, Continued

The Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” and SFAS No. 118,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures.”
These pronouncements apply to impaired loans except for large groups of smaller-balance
homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment including residential
mortgage and installment loans.

A loan is impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal and interest due under the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Impaired loans are measured at the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, at the loan’s observable market price, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. If the measure of the impaired
loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan, the Company shall recognize an
impairment by creating a valuation allowance with a corresponding charge to the provision
for possible loan losses or by adjusting an existing valuation allowance for the impaired loan
with a corresponding charge or credit to the provision for possible loan losses.

The Company’s installment loans are divided into various groups of smaller-balance
homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and, thus, are not subject to
the provisions of SFAS Nos. 114 and 118. Substantially all other loans of the Company are
evaluated for impairment under the provisions of SFAS Nos. 114 and 118.

The Company considers all loans subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 114 that are on a
nonaccrual status to be impaired. Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when doubt as to
timely collection of principal or interest exists, or when principal or interest is past due 90
days or more unless such loans are well-secured and in the process of collection. Delays or
shortfalls in loan payments are evaluated along with various other factors to determine if a
loan is impaired. Generally, delinquencies under 90 days are considered insignificant unless
certain other factors are present which indicate impairment is probable. The decision to place
a loan on nonaccrual status is also based on an evaluation of the borrower’s financial
condition, collateral, liquidation value, and other factors that affect the borrower’s ability to
pay.

Generally, at the time a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest accrued and
uncollected on the loan in the current fiscal year is reversed from income, and all interest
accrued and uncollected from the prior year is charged off against the allowance for possible
loan losses. Thereafter, interest on nonaccrual loans is recognized as interest income only to
the extent that cash is received and future collection of principal is not in doubt. If the
collectibility of outstanding principal is doubtful, such cash received is applied as a reduction
of principal. A nonaccrual loan may be restored to an accruing status when principal and
interest are no longer past due and unpaid and future collection of principal and interest on a
timely basis is not in doubt.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(@)

(e

Loans, Continued

Loans not on nonaccrual status are classified as impaired in certain cases when
there is inadequate protection by the current net worth and financial capacity of
the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. In those cases, such loans have a
well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt,
and if such deficiencies are not corrected, there is a probability that the Company
will sustain some loss. In such cases, interest income continues to accrue as long
as the loan does not meet the Company’s criteria for nonaccrual status.

Generally, the Company also classifies as impaired any loans the terms of which
have been modified in a troubled debt restructuring. Interest is generally accrued
on such loans that continue to meet the modified terms of their loan agreements.

The Company’s charge-off policy for impaired loans is similar to its charge-off
policy for all loans in that loans are charged off in the month when they are

considered uncollectible.

Allowance for Possible Loan Losses

The provision for possible loan losses represents a charge to earnings necessary,
after loan charge-offs and recoveries, to maintain the allowance for pessible loan
losses at an appropriate level which is adequate to absorb estimated losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. Such estimated losses arise primarily from the loan
portfolio but may also be derived from other sources, including commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit. The level of the allowance is
determined on a quarterly basis using procedures which inciude: (1) categorizing
commercial and commercial real estate loans into risk categories to estimate loss
probabilities based primarily on the historical loss experience of those risk
categories and current economic conditions; (2) analyzing significant commercial
and commercial real estate credits and calculating specific reserves as necessary;
(3) assessing various homogenecus consumer loan categories to estimate loss
probabilities based primarily on historical loss experience; (4) reviewing
unfunded commitments; and (5) considering various other factors, such as
changes in credit concentrations, loan mix, and economic conditions which may
not be specifically quantified in the loan analysis process.

The allowance for possible loan losses consists of an allocated portion and an
unallocated, or general portion. The allocated portion is maintained to cover
estimated losses applicable to specific segments of the loan portfolic. The
unallocated portion is maintained to absorb losses which probably exist as of the
evaluation date but are not identified by the more objective processes used for the
allocated portion of the allowance due to risk of errors or imprecision. While the
total allowance consists of an allocated portion and an unallocated portion, these

terms are primarily used to describe a process. Both portions of the allowance are
available to provide for inherent loss in the entire portfolio.

20




CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e

(g

Allowance for Possible Loan Losses, Continsed

The allowance for possible loan losses is increased by provisions for possible loan
losses charged to expense and is reduced by loans charged off net of recoveries on
loans previously charged off. The provision is based on management’s
determination of the amount of the allowance necessary to provide for estimated
loan losses based on its evaluation of the loan portfolio. Determining the
appropriate level of the allowance and the amount of the provision involves
uncertainties and matters of judgment and therefore cannot be determined with
precision.

Loans Held-For-Sale

Mortgage loans held for sale are reported at the lower of cost or market value,
determined by outstanding commitments from investors at the balance sheet date.
These loans are valued on an aggregate basis.

Securities

The Company accounts for securities under the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 (SFAS No. 115), "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities". Under the provisions of the
Statement, securities are to be classified in three categories and accounted for as
follows:

o Securities Held-to-Maturity

Debt securities that the enterprise has the positive intent and ability to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and
reported at amortized cost. No securities have been classified as
securities held-to-maturity.

o Trading Securities

Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the
purpose of selling them in the near term are classified as trading
securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
included in earnings. No securities have been classified as trading
securities.

e Securities Available-for-Sale

Debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity
securities or trading securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from earnings and reported in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity.

The Company has classified all its securities as securities available-for-sale.

Realized gains or losses from the sale of securities are recognized upon realization
based upon the specific identification method.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounving Policies, Continued

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2601 and 2000

()

@

W

(k)

O]

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Gain or
loss on items retired and otherwise disposed of is credited or charged to
operations and cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
asset and accumulated depreciation accounts.

Expenditures for major renewals and improvements of premises and equipment
are capitalized and those for maintenance and repairs are charged to earnings as
incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, amounts due from banks, and Federal funds scld. Generally, Federal funds
sold are purchased and sold for one-day periods. The Company maintains
deposits in excess of the Federal insurance amounts with other financial
institutions. Management makes deposits only with financial institutions it
considers to be financially sound.

Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes payable or refundable for the
current year (after exclusion of non-taxable income such as interest on state and
municipal securities) and deferred taxes on temporary differences between the
amount of taxable and pretax financial income and between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their reported amcunts in the financial statements. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are included in the financial statements at currently enacted
income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax asset and
liabilities are expected to be realized or settled as prescribed in Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." As
changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal

income tax return. Each corporation provides for income taxes on a separate-
return basis.

Stock Options

The Company uses the fair value method to calculate the compensation reported
in the proforma earnings in note 15 to the consclidated financial statements.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred by the Company.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2600

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{m)

(n)

(o)

Other Real Estate

Real estate acquired in the settlement of loans is initially recorded at the lower of
cost (loan value of real estate acquired in settlement of loans plus incidental
expense) or estimated fair value, less estimated cost to sell. Based on periodic
evaluations by management, the carrying values are reduced by a direct charge to
earnings when they exceed net realizable value. Costs relating to the
development and improvement of the property are capitalized, while holding costs
of the property are charged to expense in the period incurred.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 and 2000 figures to conform
to the presentation for 2002.

Ofi-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off balance sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments
under credit card arrangements, commercial letters of credit and standby letters of
credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when
they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.

Loans and Allowance for Possible Loan Losses

The detail of loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 88,406 $ 80,224
Installment 5,766 5,309
Real estate - mortgage 60,260 46,198
Real estate - construction 21,488 9,343
175,920 141,074
Allowance for possible loan losses 2,535 2,122

$ 173385 § 1389352
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(2) Loans and Allowance for Possible Loan Losses, Continued

The principal maturities on loans at December 31, 2002 are as follows:

(In Thousands)

Commercial,
Financial
and Real Estate - Real Estate-
Maturi Agricultural Installment Mortgage Construction Total

3 months or less $ 6,528 3 768 § 5,161 $ 6,238 $ 18,695
3 to 12 months 20,423 1,148 9,011 11,743 42,325
1to5 years 56,148 3,850 26,240 3,507 89,745
Over 5 Years 5,307 - 19,848 - 25,155

§ 88,406 § 5766 $ 60,260 $ 21488 175,920

At December 31, 2002, variable rate and fixed rate loans total $84,625,000 and
$91,295,000, respectlvely At December 31, 2001, vanable rate and fixed rate loans total
$58,163,000 and $82,911,000, respectively.

In the normal course of business, the Company has made loans at prevailing interest rates
and terms to its executive officers, directors and their affiliates aggregating $3,573,000
and $2,768,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31, 2002,
none of these loans were restructured, nor were any related party loans charged off in
2002 and 2001.

An analysis of the activity with respect to such loans to related parties is as follows:

(In Thousands)
December 31,

2002 2001
Balance, January 1 $ 2,768  § 1,195
New loans during the year 1,193 8,382
Repayments during the year (388) (6.809)
Balance, December 31 g 3573 § 2,768

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company originated loans for sale in the secondary market
approximating $53,884,000, $43,803,000 and $21,337,000, respectively. Under normal
terms, the Company may be required, in the event of default, to repurchase loans sold for
a period of one year. At December 31, 2002, the Company had not been required to
repurchase any of the loans originated by the Company and sold in the secondary market.
The gain on sale of these loans totaled $782,000, $591,000 and $381,000 in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Management expects no loss to resuit from these recourse
provisions.
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Loans and Allowance for Possible Loan Losses, Continued

Loans which have been placed on non-accrual status totaled $1,306,000 and $1,268,000
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Had interest on these loans been accrued,
interest income would have been increased by approximately $28,000, $56,000 and
$34,000 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Transactions in the allowance for possible loan losses of the Company for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are summarized as follows:

(In Thousands)
2002 2001 2000

Balance - beginning of period  $ 2,122 % 1,886 $ 1,330
Provision charged to

operating

expense 1,090 570 792
Loans charged off (712) (359) (247)
Recoveries 35 25 11
Net charge-offs (677) (334) (236)
Balance - end of year $ 2,535 § 2,122 § 1,886

The Company’s principal customers are basically in the Middle Tennessee area with a
concentration in Davidson County. Credit is extended to businesses and individuals and
is evidenced by promissory notes. The terms and conditions of the loans including

collateral varies depending upon the purpose of the credit and the borrower's financial
condition.

Impaired loans and related loan loss reserve amounts at December 31, 2002 and 2001
were as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
Recorded investment $ 1,150 $ 1,222
Loan loss reserve $ 290 $ 425

The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001 was $162,000 and $596,000, respectively. There was no interest income
recognized on these loans during 2002 and 2001 for the period that such loans were
impaired.
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Debt and Eguity Securities

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the balance sheet according to
management's intent. The Company’s classification of securities at December 31 was as

follows:

U.S. Treasury and cther U.S.
government agencies and
corporations

Cbligations of states and political

subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate and other securities

U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
government agencies and
corporations

Obligations of states and political

subdivisions
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate and other securities

_(In Thousands)

Securities Available-For-Sale

2002

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 14,218 248 $ - $ 14,466
2,125 56 1 2,180
26,190 529 18 26,701
_1.797 - - 1,797
$ 44330 $ 833 $ 19 $ 45144

(In Thousands)
Securities Available-For-Sale
2001

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 10,078 70 $ 96 $ 10,052
1,104 17 - 1,121
11,040 59 21 11,078
1,096 - - 1.096
§ 23318 146 $ 117 g 23,347
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Debt and Equity Securities, Continued

The amortized cost and estimated market value of debt and equity securities at December
31, 2002, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from
contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penaities.

(In Thousands)

Securities Available-For-Sale Estimated
Market
Cost Value
Less than one year $ 251 257
Due after one year through five years 8,154 8,350
Due after five years through ten years 7,254 7,337
Due after ten years 684 702
Mortgage-backed securities 26,190 26,701
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,603 1,603
The Bankers Bank stock 194 194

$ 44330 $ 45,144

Included within the securities portfolio is stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank
amounting to $1,603,000 and $502,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
and stock of The Bankers Bank amounting to $194,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,

respectively. The stock can be sold back only at par and only to the respective financial
institution or to another member instifution.

The Company periodically applies the stress test to its securities portfolio. To satisfy the
stress test a security’s estimated market value should not decline more than certain

percentages given certain assumed interest rate increases. The Company had no
securities that failed to meet the stress test.

Results from sales of debt and equity securities are as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Gross proceeds 2001 § - $ -
Gross realized gains $ 1 3 - $ -
Gross realized losses - - -
Net realized gains 3 i 8 - $ -

Securities carried in the balance sheet of approximately $10,237,000 (amortized cost of
$9,965,000) and $6,720,000 (amortized cost of $6,634,000) were pledged to secure

public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by law at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively.
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(3) Debt and Equity Securities, Continued

Included in the securities above are $2,033,000 (amortized cost of $1,984,000) and
$1,121,000 (amortized cost of $1,104,000) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
in obligations of political subdivisicns located within the State of Tennessee.
Management purchases only obligaticns of such political subdivisions it considers to be
financially sound.

Securities that have rates that adjust prior to maturity totaled $3,589,000 (approximate
amortized cost of $3,542,000) and $3,598,000 (approximate amortized cost of
$3,605,000) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

(4) Premises and Equipment

The detail of premises and equipment at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:
(In Thousands)

2002 2001

Land $ 1,692 § 1,092
Land improvements 3 2
Buildings 3,208 3,208
Leasehold improvements 911 911
Fumniture and fixtures 581 576
Equipment 1,166 1,130

6,961 6,919
Less accumulated depreciation (1.901) (1.491)

$ 5060 § 5428

{(5) Depaosits
Deposits at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001

Demand deposits $ 18,584  § 14,962
Savings deposits 1,892 1,217
Negotiable order of withdrawal 11,955 12,137
Money market demand accounts 58,179 62,250
Certificates of deposit and individual
retirement

accounts $100,000 or greater 60,025 31,910
Other certificates of deposit 37,230 26,056
Other individual retirement accounts 2,030 1.561

§ 189,895 § 150,093
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Deposits, Continued

Principal maturities of certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts at
December 31, 2002 are as follows:

(In Thousands)
Single Deposits  Single Deposits

Maturi Under $100,000  Over $100,000 Total
3 months or less $ 3,688 $ 14,716 5 18,404
3 to 6 months 8,335 3,453 11,788
6 to 12 months 7,029 7,512 14,541
1to 5 years 20,208 34,344 54,552
$ 39260 § 60,025 $ 99,285

At December 31, 2002 certificates of deposit and other deposits in denominations of
$100,000 or more amounted to $106,177, OOO as compared to $74,775,000 at December
31, 2001.

The Company is required to maintain cash balances or balances with the Federal Reserve
Bank or other correspondent banks based on certain percentages of deposit types. The
average required amounts for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was
approximately $626,000 and $513,000, respectively.

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

The maximum amounts of outstanding repurchase agreements at any month end during
2002 and 2001 was $3,673,000 and $2,978,000, respectively. The average daily balance
outstanding during 2002 and 2001 was $2,928,000 and $2,447,000, respectively. The
underlying securities are typically held by other financial institutions and are designated
as pledged.

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

The advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2002 and 2001 consist
of the following:

(In Thousands)
December 31

Interest Rate 2002 2001
5.48% $ 5,000 $ 5,000
4.94% 6,000 6,000
4,54% 4,732 -
3.75% 55 -
3.66% 5,000 -
3.08% 5.000

$ 25787 § 11,0600
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(7) Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank, Continued

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank are to mature as follows at December 31,

2002:
Year Ending (In

Thousands)

December 31 Amount
2008 $ 5,000
2011 6,000
2012 14,787
b 25,787

These advances are collateralized by approximately $26,768,000 of the Company’s
mortgage loan portfolio.

(8) Income Taxes
The components of the net deferred income tax asset are as follows:

(In Thousands)

December 31

2002 2001
Deferred tax asset:
Federal $ 809 § 700
State 166 131
975 831
Deferred tax liability:
Federal (356) (90)
State (73) (17
(429) (107)
$ 546 § 724

The tax effects of each type of significant item that gave rise to deferred taxes are:
Financial statement allowance for loan losses in excess
of the tax allowance $ 817 $ 727

Excess of depreciation deducted in the financial
statements over the amounts deducted for tax purposes 77 46

Financial statement deduction for deferred compensation
in excess of deduction for tax purposes 72 48

Financial statement income on FHLB stock dividends
not recognized for tax purposes (117) (96)

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale (311) a1

Financial statement deduction for organizational costs
in excess of the amounts deducted for tax purposes 8 10

3 546 $ 724
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Income Taxes, Continued
The components of income tax expense (benefit) are summarized as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000
Current:
Federal $ 8% § 564 § 324
State 186 107 62
1,082 671 386
Deferred:
Federal (97) (67) (174)
State (26) (12) (33)
(123) (79) (207)
Actual tax expense $ 959 $ 592 § 179

A reconciliation of actual income tax expense of $959,000, $592,000 and $179,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, to the "expected” tax

expense (computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate of 34% to earnings
before income taxes) is as follows:

(In Thousands)

2002 2001 2000

Computed “expected” tax $ 879 % 538 § 430
expense '
State income taxes, net of
Federal

income tax benefit 109 63 19
State deferred income taxes
related

to state income tax rate (6) - -
increase
Disallowed expenses (8) 4 8
Tax exempt interest, net of
interest

expense exclusion (21) (15) (14)
Compensation deduction related
to

non-qualified stock option plan - 3) 272)
Other items, net 6

Actual tax expense $ 959 § 592 % 179

Total income tax expense for 2002 includes tax expense of less than $1,000 related to the
gain on sale of securities. There were no sales of securities in 2001 or 2000.
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Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has in effect a 401(K) profit sharing plan for the benefit of its employees.
Employees eligible to participate in the plan are those at least 21 years old and who have
completed 1,000 hours of service. Those employees who were employed on the Plan's
effective date do not have to satisfy the eligibility requirements. The provisions of the
plan provide for both employee and employer coniributions. For the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company contributed $135,000, $132,000 and
$86,000, respectively, to the plan.

Commitment and Contingencies and Related Party Transactions

The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business.
Management, after consultation with iegal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any,
arising from such litigation and claims will not be material to the financial position.

During 1994, the subsidiary Bank entered into an operating lease agreement for the
building in which the subsidiary Bank operates. The agreement is for a period of ten
years with the subsidiary Bank having the right of first refusal at the end of the lease to
renew and extend the term at the then prevailing fair market value of the premises. The
terms of the lease required an initial payment of $40,000 which is being amortized over
the term of the lease. During 1996, the subsidiary Bank entered into an operating lease
agreement for facilities related to the operation of a new branch. The agreement is for a
period of five years and can be renewed for up to four consecutive five year terms.
During the year ended December 31, 1998, the subsidiary Bank entered into several
operating lease agreements for facilities related to the operation of a new branch,
mortgage loan department, and operations center. The agreement related to the new
branch is for a period of ten years and can be renewed for up to two consecutive five-year
terms. The mortgage loan department's lease agreement is for a two-year period, and the
agreement for the operations center is for a five-year pericd. During the year ended
December 31, 2000, the subsidiary Bank renewed the operating lease agreement for the
mortgage loan department for forty-seven months.

The subsidiary Bank also entered into operating lease agreements for three automobiles,
one of which expired in 2002. The automobile leases are normaily for a period of three
years.

Minimum future rental payments required under the terms of the leases are as follows:

(In Thousands)

Year Ending Other
December 31, Building Facilities Vehicles Total

2003 3 141 § 188 § 10 § 339
2004 11 119 6 136
2005 - 114 - 114
2006 - 87 - 87
2007 - 59 - 59
Later Years - 30 - 30
$ 152 § 597 § 16 % 765
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Commitment and Contingencies and Related Party Transactions, Continued

Total rent expense under the leases amounted to $359,000, $358,000 and $345,000,
respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

The operations center is leased to a partnership 50% of which is owned by a director of
the Company. The amount paid for this lease was $54,000, $55,000 and $50,000 during
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial
instruments consist primarily of commitments to extend credit. These instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the
extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party
to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the
contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit
policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-
sheet instruments.

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
Financial instruments whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:
Commercial loan commitments $ 13,755  §$ 6,303
Unfunded lines-of-credit 18,545 17,320
Letters of credit 2,109 1,365
Total $ 34409 § 24,988

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since
many of the commitments are expected to be drawn upon, the total commitment amounts
generally represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's
credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral, if deemed necessary
by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of
the counterparty. Collateral normally consists of real property.
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Concentratiorn of Credit Risk

Practically all of the Company’s loans, commitments, and commercial and standby letters of credit
have been granted to customers in the Company’s market area. Practically all such customers are
depositors of the Company. Investment in state and municipal securities also include governmental
entities within the Company’s market area. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth
in note 2 to the financial statements.

Regulatory Matiers and Restrictions on Dividends

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the
Federal Reserve Bank, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Tennessee Department of
Financial Institutions. Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory -- and
possibly additional discretionary-actions by regulators that could, in that event, have a direct material
effect on the institution's financial statements. The relevant regulations require the Company and its
subsidiary to meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that invelve quantitative measures of the
Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting principles. The Company’s capital classifications are also subject to qualitative
Jjudgments by the Regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. Those qualitative
judgments could also affect the Company’s capital status and the amount of dividends the Company
may distribute.

The Company and its subsidiary are required to maintain minimum amounts of capital to total "risk
weighted" assets, as defined by the banking regulators. The Company and its subsidiary bank are
required to have minimum Tier I and Total Capital ratios of 4.0% and 8.0%, respectively. The actual
ratios at that date were 10.0% and 11.2%, respectively, at December 31, 2002 and 11.5% and 12.8%,
respectively, at December 31, 2001. The leverage ratios at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were 7.7%
and 9.2%, respectively, and the minimum requirement was 4.0%.

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the banking regulators categorized the
Company and its subsidiary as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have
changed the Company’s category.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company provides its directors a deferred compensation plan. The plan was established in 1999
to reward the directors for past performance and to provide retirement and death benefits. There were
nine directors participating in the plan at December 31, 2002.

The plan provides retirement benefits for a period of 120 months after the director reaches the age of
65. The Company has purchased insurance policies to provide death benefits provided for in the
plans. The insurance policies remain the sole property of the Company and are payable to the
Company. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the deferred compensation liability totaled $188,000
and $126,000, respectively, the cash surrender value of life insurance was $1,591,000 and
$1,151,000, respectively, and the face amount of the insurance policies in force approximated
$6,625,000 in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Upon the death of the insured, each insured’s beneficiary
is entitled to twenty-five percent (25%) of the net at risk insurance portion of the proceeds. The “net
at risk portion” is the total proceeds less the cash value of the policy. The deferred compensation plan
is not qualified under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Stock Option Plen

In March of 2001, the Company’s stockholders approved the Capital Bancorp, Inc. 2001
Stock Option Plan which provides for the grant of options to purchase 500,000 shares of
the Company’s stock. The Company agreed with the Bank that it would exchange its
options te the holders of stock options under the Bank’s stock option plan on an option-
for-option basis. Thus options that were outstanding under the Bank’s stock option plan
have been exchanged for options under the Company’s stock option plan. It is intended
that the holders of the Bank’s opticns will be able to exercise their options on exactly the
terms and conditions that they could have exercised Bank stock options. Thus
substantially identical vesting, exercise price, and all other material terms of exercise
have been grafted on the stock options exchanged by Bank stock option holders. (Thus,
for example, Bank stock options that were fully vested at the time that the Company
acquired the Bank became fully vested at the time of their exchange for Company stock
options.) At December 31, 2002, the Company has granted the right to purchase 128,500
shares of stock to its officers and employees at an exercise price of $12.75, 500 shares to
its officers and employees at an exercise price of $15.30, 1,500 shares to its officers and
employees at an exercise price of $16.00 and 130,000 shares of stock to the Bank’s
Directors at an exercise price of $10.00 per share.

Under the Stock Option Plan, stock option awards may be granted in the form of
incentive stock options or nonstatutory stock options, and are generally exercisable for up
to ten years following the date such option awards are granted. Exercise prices of
incentive stock options must be equal to or greater than 100% of the fair market value of
the common stock on the grant date.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 "Accounting for Stock
Based Compensation”, as amended by SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure”, sets forth the methods for recognition of cost
of plans similar to those of the Company. As is permitted, management has elected to
continue accounting for the plan under APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in
accounting for its plan. However, under SFAS No. 123, the Company is required to
make proforma disciosures as if cost had been recognized in accordance with the
pronouncement. Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under the plan consistent
with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net earnings, basic earnings per
common share and diluted earnings per common share would have been reduced to the
proforma amounts indicated below.

In Thousands,
Except Per Share Amounts

2002 2001 2000
Net earnings As Reported $ 1,627 §$ 989 % 1,087
Proforma $ 1,548 § 968 § 1,076
Basic earnings per common share As Reported 3 1.04 % 63 % .68
Proforma $ 99 8 62 3 .68
Diluted earnings per common share As Reported $ 101 § 62 3 .65
Proforma $ 96 % 60 3 .65
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A summary of the stock option activity for 2002, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

Outstanding at
beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of
year

Options exercisable at
year end

2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
173,000 §$ 10.76 203,500 $ 1091 312,000 $ 10.81
91,500 10.41 7,000 14.00 4,000 18.00
- - (5,000) (10.00) (112,500) (10.89)
(4,000) (19.00) (32.500) (10.00) - -

—260,500 §__10.15

—232,400

173,000 35__1076

157,100

203560 § 1091

—185,900

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options cutstanding at

December 31, 2002:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted
Range of Number Average Remaining Number Average
Exercise Qutstanding Exercise Contractual Exercisable Exercise

Prices at 12/31/02 Price Life at 12/31/02 Price

$ 1000 130,000 10.00 8.25 years 120,000 $ 1000
$ 1275 128,500 12.75 9.25 years 111,900 $ 1275
$ 1530 500 15.30 9.75 years 500 $ 1530

$ 16.00 1,500 16.00 9.83 years

—260,500
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A summary of options activity for directors, former directors, the four senior officers and

others for 2002 is as follows:

Current directors
Former directors

Subtotal

Four senior officers:

$10.00 options
$14.00 options
$18.00 options

Others

Forfeited

Options Held at
December 31, 2001
Expiration
Date
Changed
Options To

50,000  3/15/12(1)

50,000

95000  3/15/12(2)
1,500 3/15/12(3)
4000  3/15/12(4)

100,500

18,500  Various
4.000

~173,000

2002 Grants

Expiration Total
Options Date Options
47,500 3/15/12 97,500
32.500(5) 12/31/04 32,500
__ 80,000 130,000
- 95,000
. 1,500
- 4,000
100,500
11,500 Various 30,000
21,500 260,500

No new options were issued to the four senior officers during this 2002 restructuring.

(1) Extended from 12/31/04 to 3/15/12 - Exercise price remains at $10.00

(2) Extended from 12/31/04 to 3/15/12 - Exercise price was increased from $10.00 to $12.75.
(3) Extended from 7/2/11 to 3/15/12 - Exercise price was decreased from $14.00 to $12.75.

(4) Extended from 1/2/10 to 3/15/12 - Exercise price was decreased from $18.00 to $12.75.

(5) These options were forfeited in 2001 but reinstated to former directors in 2002 at a $10.00 per share

exercise price.

During 2001, 5,000 shares of authorized but unissued common stock were sold to a
retiring Director of the subsidiary Bank pursuant to the exercise of vested options for
5,000 shares at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The aggregate proceeds were

$50,000.

During 2000, the subsidiary Bank acquired 250,000 shares of common stock at a price of
$18.00 per share from its then largest shareholder. In addition, the shareholder exercised

all of his options for 112,500 shares at a total exercise price of $1,225,000. The

subsidiary Bank then acquired these shares at $18.00 per share. The net effect of these

transactions was to reduce the total capital by $5,300,000.
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The compensation cost for 2002 related to the grant of stock options includes all grants
made in 2002 plus the impact of changes to option terms as setforth above. The fair
value of options for 2002 ranged from $0.20 to $1.48 for each option. For 2001 the fair
value ranged from $2.21 to $2.49, and for 2000 the fair value of each option was $5.40.
The fair value for 2002 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. For
2001 and 2000 the minimum methodology as permitted by SFAS 123 for securities not
publicly traded was utilized. The following assumptions were used for 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively: risk free interest rate ranging from 3.56% to0 5.11%, 5.11% to 5.39%
and 6.68%; expected life of ten years; and dividend yieid ranging from 2.95% to 4.70%,
3.14%, 3.14% and 2.61%. The dividend yield was computed assuming a 15% return on
equity with a 30% dividend to earnings payout ratio.

Earnings Per Share

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128 “Eamings Per Share”
setsforth uniform standards for computing and presenting earnings per share. The
computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. For the Company the computation of
diluted earnings per share begins with the basic eamnings per share plus the effect of
common shares contingently issuable from stock options and warrants.

The following is a summary of the components comprising basic and diluted earnings per
share (EPS):

In Thousands,
Except Share Amounts

2002 2001 2000
Basic EPS Computation:
Numerator - Earnings available to common
stockholders $ 1,627 § 989 § 1,087
Denominator - Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding 1.565,271 1,562,531 1,589,233
Basic earnings per common share 3 104 § 63 § 68
Diluted EPS Computation:
Numerator - Earnings available to common
stockholders $ 1,627 § 989 § 1,087
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 1,565,271 1,562,531 1,589,233
Dilutive effect of stock options and warrants 53.191 39,545 73,545
1.618.462 1,602,076 1,662,778
Diluted earnings per common share Ay 101 § 62 3 .65
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2002 and 2001

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Cash $ 11* 3 -
Investment in wholly-owned commercial bank subsidiary 18,600* 16,540%*
Deferred tax benefit 8 10
Due from wholly-owned commercial bank subsidiary 1* -
Refundable income taxes 12 -
Total assets $ 18,632 $ 16,550
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Due to wholly-owned commercial bank subsidiary N - h) 29*
Total liabilities - 29
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 20,000,000 shares,
no shares issued - -
Common stock, par value $4 per share, authorized 20,000,000
shares, 1,565,271 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 6,261 6,261
Additional paid-in capital 5,909 5,909
Retained earnings 5,960 4,333
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities, net of
income taxes of $311,000 and $11,000, respectively 502 18
Total stockholders’ equity 18,632 16,521
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity b 18632 § 16,550

*Eliminated in consolidation.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Larnings

For the Year Ended to December 31, 2002 and
For the Period from July 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001

(In Thousands)

2002 2001
Expenses:
Organizational costs § - $ 29
Other 24 -
Loss before Federal income tax benefits
and equity in undistributed earnings of
commercial bank subsidiary (24) (29)
Federal income tax benefits 9 10
(15) (19)
Equity in undistributed earnings of commercial
bank subsidiary 1,642* 637*
Net earnings : 1,627 618
Other comprehensive gain (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
arising during period, net of taxes of $300,000
and $23,000, respectively ' - 485 38)
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains ‘
included in net earnings, net of taxes (1) -
Other comprehensive earnings (loss) 484 (38)
Comprehensive earnings $ 2,111 3 580

*Eliminated in consolidation.
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Parent Company Financial informasion, Continued

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC,
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2602 and
For the Period from July 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001

(In Thousands)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

Net Unrealized
~ Additional Gain (Loss) On
Preferred Common Paid-In Retained Available-For-
Stock Stock Capital Eamings Sale Securities Total
Issuance of 1,560,271 shares of
common stock in exchange for
1,560,271 common shares of
commercial bank subsidiary $ - $ 6,241 § 5879 § 3,715 56 § 15,891
Issuance of 5,000 shares of common
stock pursuant to exercise of stock
options - 20 30 - - 50
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
on available-for-sale securities
during the year, net of taxes of
$23,000 - - - - 38) (38)
Net earnings for the period - - - 618 - 618
Balance December 31, 2001 - 6,261 5,909 4,333 18 16,521
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
on available-for-sale securities
during the year, net of taxes of
$300,000 - - - - 484 484
Net earnings for the - - - 1.627 - 1,627
Balance December 31, 2002 6,261 § 5,909 § 5,960 502 $_ 18,632
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CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 and
For the Period from July 1, 2001 toc December 31, 2001

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents

(In Thousands)

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities;
Net cash related to operating activities 3 (24) $ -

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital contribution to bank subsidiary -

Increase in due from subsidiary (1) -
Dividend received from subsidiary 65 -
Net cash used in investing activities 64 (50)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options -

Decrease in due to subsidiary (29) -
Net cash provided by financing activities (29)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11 -

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 11 8 -
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(17)  Capital Bancerp, Inc. -

Parent Company Financial Information, Continued

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Cash Flows, Continued

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 and
For the Period from July 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(In Thousands)

2001 2001
Reconciliation of net earnings to net cash related to
operating activities:
Net earnings 3 1,627 $ 618
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
related to operating activities:
Equity in earnings of commercial bank
subsidiary (1,642) (637)
Organizational costs - 29
Decrease (increase) in deferred income taxes 3 (10)
Increase in refundable income taxes (12) -
Total adjustments . (1.651) (618)
Net cash related to operating activities 3 (24) § -

Supplemental Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

The Company incurred costs in connection with the reorganization discussed in
note 1(a) to the consolidated financial statements of $29,000. These costs were
funded by the bank subsidiary for which the parent company has a liability at
December 31, 2001.

The Company issued 1,560,271 shares of its common stock in exchange for all the
outstanding stock of the subsidiary bank. The investment has been recorded at
$15,891,000, the net book value of the subsidiary bank at the date of the stock
exchange.
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Disclosures Aboss Fair Value of Financigl Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (SFAS No. 107), requires that the Company disclose estimated fair
values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions are
set forth beiow for the Company’s financial instruments.

Cash and short-term investments

For those short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Securities

The carrying amounts for short-term securities approximate fair value because
they mature in 90 days or less and do not present unanticipated credit concerns.
The fair value of longer-term securities and mortgage-backed securities, except
certain state and municipal securities, is estimated based on bid prices published
in financial newspapers or bid quotations received from securities dealers. The
fair value of certain state and municipal securities is not readily available
through market scurces other than dealer quotations, so fair value estimates are
based on quoted market prices of similar instruments, adjusted for differences
between the quoted instruments and the instruments being valued.

SFAS No. 107 specifies that fair values should be calculated based on the value
of one unit without regard to any premium or discount that may result from
concentrations of ownership of a financial instrument, possible tax ramifications,
or estimated transaction costs. Accordingly, these considerations have not been
incorporated into the fair value estimates.

Loans

Fair values are estimated for portfclios of ioans with similar financial
characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such as commercial, mortgage,
credit card and other consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into
fixed and adjustable rate interest terms.

The fair value of the various categories of loans is estimated by discounting the
future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining average
estimated maturities.

The estimated maturity for mortgages is modified from the contractual terms to
give consideration to management's experience with prepayments. Management
has made estimates of fair value discount rates that it believes to be reasonable.
However, because there is no market for many of these financial instruments,
management has no basis to determine whether the fair value presented below
would be indicative of the value negotiated in an actual sale.
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(18) Disclosures About Fair Value of Financigl Instrumenis, Continued

Loans, Continued

The value of the loan portfolio is also discounted in consideration of the credit
quality of the loan portfolio as would be the case between willing buyers and
sellers. Particular emphasis has been given to loans on the Company’s internal
watch list. Valuation of these loans is based upon borrower performance,
collateral values (including external appraisals), etc.

Loans Held for Sale

These instruments are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at the lower of
cost or market value. The fair value of these instruments are based on

subsequent liquidation values of the instruments which did not result in any
significant gains or losses.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and certain money market
deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value
of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using the rates currently
offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. Under the provision of
SFAS No. 107 the fair value estimates for deposits does not include the benefit
that results from the low cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities
compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market.

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

The securities sold under repurchase agreements are payable upon demand. For
this reason the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

The fair value of these advances is estimated by discounting the future payments

using the current rates at which similar advances could be obtained for the same
remaining average maturities.

J

Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit and Financial
Guarantees Written

Loan commitments are made to customers generally for a period not to exceed
one year and at the prevailing interest rates in effect at the time the loan is
closed. Commitments to extend credit related to construction loans are made for
a period not to exceed six months with interest rates at the current market rate at
the date of closing. In addition, standby letters of credit are issued for periods up
to three years with rates to be determined at the date the letter of credit is funded.
Fees are only charged for the construction loans and the standby letters of credit
and the amounts unearned at December 31, 2002 are insignificant. Accordingly,
these commitments have no carrying value and management estimates the
commitments to have no significant fair value.
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(18) Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Continued

Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit and Financial
Guarantees Written, Continued

The carrying value and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

In Thousands

2002 2001
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 5411  § 5,411 $ 6,741 % 6,741
Securities 45,144 45,144 23,347 23,347
Loans 175,920 141,074
Less: allowance for loan losses 2,535 2,122
Loans, net of allowance 173,385 - 176,539 138,952 139,427
Loans held for sale 5,769 5,769 3514 3,514
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 189,895 191,874 150,093 150,927
Securities sold under repurchase
agreements 3,222 3,222 2,854 2,854
Advances from Federal Home Loan
Bank 25,787 24,758 11,000 11,498

Unrecognized financial instruments:
Commitments to extend credit - -
Standby letters of credit - -

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant
market information and information about the financial instruments. These
estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could resuit from offering
for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial
instrument. Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Company’s
financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics
of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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Limitations, Continued

Fair value estimates are based on estimating on-and-off-balance sheet financial
instruments without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future
business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
instruments. For example, a Company has a mortgage department that
contributes net fee income annually. The mortgage department is not considered
a financial instrument, and its value has not been incorporated into the fair value
estimates. Other significant assets and liabilities that are not considered
financial assets or liabilities include deferred tax assets and liabilities and
premises and equipment. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the
realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair
value estimates and have not been considered in the estimates.
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COMMON STOCK MARKET INFORMATION

The common stock of Capital Bancorp, Inc. is not listed or traded on a recognized exchange
but its is traded from time to time in the local over-the-counter market (trading symbol
CPBB%. The number of stockholders of record at December 31, 2002 was approximately
800. Based solely on information made available to the Bank from limited numbers of
buyers and sellers, we believe that the following table sets forth the quarterly range of sale
prices for the Bank’s stock during the years 2002 and 2001.

STOCK PRICES

2002 High Low
Fourth Quarter $18.18 $15.50
Third Quarter 16.50 14.25
Second Quarter 13.75 11.50
First Quarter 13.00 12.00

2001 High Low
Fourth Quarter $12.50 $12.00
Third Quarter 13.25 13.25
Second Quarter 14.00 12.00
First Quarter 15.00 15.00
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Company has appointed Sally P. Kimble, Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer as its principal Shareholder Relations spokesperson.
She may be reached at (615) 327-9000, by mail at P. O. Box 24120, Nashville,
Tennessee 37203, and by e-mail at cbispk@aol.com. The Company’s Transfer
Agent is Registrar and Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Drive, Cranford, New
Jersey 07016-3572, telephone (800) 456-0596. The Company utilizes the
Bank’s Web Site, www.capitalbk.com. A copy of the Company’s 2002 Annual
Report to Shareholders can be obtained by written request to the Company,
Capital Bancorp, Inc., P. O. Box 24120, Nashville, Tennessee 37203, Attention:
Shareholder Relations.

LINE OF BUSINESS

During 2002, the Company and its subsidiary, Capital Bank & Trust Company
(the "Bank"). were engaged primarily in the general banking business and
activities closely related to banking or to managing or controlling banks, as
authorized by the laws of the United States and the State of Tennessee and
regulations pursuant thereto. Services offered by the Bank include checking,
safe deposit box rental, personal and commercial loans, construction and real
estate loans, travelers's checks, cashier's checks, and other banking services.
The Bank renders other services in connection with its general banking business.

AVAILABILITY OF FORM 10-K

Upon the written request of any record holder or beneficial owner of the shares
of our Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, we will provide,
without charge, a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002, together with financial statements and schedules, as
and when filed with the SEC. Requests should be mailed to Sally P. Kimble,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, 1816 Hayes Street,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203. The report is expected, also, to be posted on
Capital Bank’s web site at www.capitalbk.com.

Independent Accountants: Maggart & Associates, P.C.

Suite 2150, 150 Fourth Avenue, North
Nashville, Tennessee 37219
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Main Office of the Bank
Downtown Branch
Green Hills Branch
Goodlettsville Branch
Hendersonville Branch
Hermitage Branch

Operations Center:

CAPITAL BANK & TRUST COMPANY OFFICES

1820 West End Avenue
Nashville, Tennessee 37203

222 4™ Avenue North
Nashville, Tennessee 37219

2200 Abbott Martin Road
Nashvilie, Tennessee 37215

140 Long Hollow Pike
Goodlettsville, Tennessee 37072

370 East Main Street
Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075

4422 Lebanon Road
Hermitage, Tennessee 37076

1816 Hayes Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37203

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
P, 0. Box 24120
Nashville, Tennessee 37203
Attention: Shareholder Relations

(615) 327-9000




CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
CAPITAL BANK & TRUST COME

INFORMATION

CAPITAL BANCORP, INC.
DIRECTORS

Albert J. Dale, III, President Dale, Inc.

R. Rick Hart, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Capital Bancorp, Inc.

Michael D. Shmerling, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Kroll, Inc.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
R. Rick Hart, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
John W. Gregory, Jr., Executive Vice President

Sally P. Kimble, Executive Vice President and CFO

CAPITAL BANK & TRUST COMPANY

DIRECTORS
Robert P. Alexander, Sr. Clenna G. Ashley
Albert J. Dale, IIT C. Donald Dixon
Robert W. Doyle \. John W. Gregory, Jr.
R. Rick Hart H. Edward Jackson, [T
H. Newton Lovvom, Jr., M.D. Michael D. Shmerling
SENIOR OFFICERS

R. Rick Hart, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
John W. Gregory, Jr., Executive Vice President

Sally P. Kimble, Executive Vice President and CFO

Kevin D. Busbey, Senior Vice President and Cashier

Jeffrey A. Irwin, Senior Vice President

Billy D. Seals, Senior Vice President

Fred K. Wyatt, Jr., Senior Vice President
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ANNUAL MEETING INFORMATION

Date: April 10, 2003
Time: 3:00 p.m. Local Time in Nashville, Tennessee (Central Time)

Place: Community Room of Capital Bank & Trust Company
1816 Hayes Street, Nashville, Tennessee 37203

For further information concerning Capital Bancorp, Inc. or its subsidiaries,
or to obtain a copy of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which is available without
charge to stockholders, please contact Sally P. Kimble, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Capital Bank & Trust, P.O. Box
24120, Nashvilie, Tennessee 37202, Telephone (615) 327-9000. We expect
to post the Annual Report on Form 10-K on Capital Bank’s Web site at
www.capitalbk.com.
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